ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 1, 2002
1:10 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Beverly Msek, Co-Chair
Representative Drew Scal zi, Co-Chair
Representative Hugh Fate, Vice Chair
Representative Joe G een
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representative Lesil MQiire
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Mary Kapsner
Representative Beth Kerttul a

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 368
"An Act authorizing the comm ssioner of conmunity and economc
devel opment to refinance and extend the term of a fishery
enhancenent | oan."

- MOVED CSHB 368(FSH) OUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 376
"An Act relating to managenent of fish and gane in and on the
navi gabl e waters and subnerged | ands of Al aska."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 382
"An Act relating to the evaluation and cleanup of sites where
certain controlled substances may have been nanufactured or
stored. "

- MOVED CSHB 382( RES) QUT OF COW TTEE
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Board of Gane

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 1, 2002



- CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 368

SHORT TI TLE: FI SHERY ENHANCEMENT LOANS
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) HARRI S

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 01/ 02 2116 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 01/ 02 2116 (H FSH, RES

02/ 08/ 02 2192 (H COSPONSOR('S): W LSON

02/ 13/ 02 2257 (H COSPONSOR('S): MCGQUI RE

02/ 15/ 02 2292 (H COSPONSOR('S) : KERTTULA

02/ 25/ 02 (H FSH AT 3:30 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 25/ 02 (H Moved CSHB 368( FSH) Qut of
Comm ttee

02/ 25/ 02 (H M NUTE( FSH)

02/ 27/ 02 2404 (H FSH RPT CS(FSH) 5DP 1NR

02/ 27/ 02 2405 (H DP: DYSON, SCALZI, KERTTULA,
STEVENS,

02/ 27/ 02 2405 (H WLSON, NR COGHI LL

02/ 27/ 02 2405 (H FN1: ( CED)

02/ 27/ 02 2418 (H COSPONSOR('S): LANCASTER

03/ 01/ 02 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 376

SHORT TI TLE: FI SH & GAME | N NAVI GABLE WATERS
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) OGAN

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 01/ 02 2121 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 01/ 02 2121 (H RES, JUD

03/ 01/ 02 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HB 382

SHORT TI TLE: CLEANUP OF | LLEGAL DRUG SI TES
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) GUESS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 04/ 02 2144 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 04/ 02 2144 (H RES, FIN

03/ 01/ 02 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 1, 2002



W TNESS REG STER

JOHN MANLY, Staff

to Representative John Harris

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 513

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 368 on behal f of
Representative Harris, sponsor.

GREG W NEGAR, Director

D vision of |Investnents

Department of Comrunity and Econom c¢ Devel opnent ( DCED)

P. O. Box 34159

Juneau, Al aska 99803-4159

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that DEC is neutral on HB 368,
whi ch woul d al |l ow aquaculture associations to refinance existing
| oans to take advantage of |ower interest rates.

JOHN CARTER, Director

Dougl as Island Pink & Chum Inc. (DI PAC)

2697 Channel Drive

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 368; indicated
refinancing is a good business practice.

DAVE COBB, Busi ness Manager

Val dez Fi sheries Devel opnment Associ ati on (VFDA)

P. O Box 125

Val dez, Al aska 99686

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 368; indicated
the bill is needed by the commercial fishing industry and the
hat chery system to remain conpetitive in today's gl obal
fisheries environnent.

REPRESENTATI VE SCOTT OGAN

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 108

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke as sponsor of HB 376.

DI CK BI SHOP

Al aska Qut door Council (AQQC)
1555 @us’s Gind

Fai r banks, Al aska 99709

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 1, 2002



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that AOC supports HB 376 and
believes it is inportant to reenphasize the Al aska Suprene
Court's finding.

REPRESENTATI VE GRETCHEN GUESS

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 112

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 382.

NATHAN JOHNSOQN, St aff

to Representative G etchen Guess

Al aska State Legislature

716 West 4th, Suite 200

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 382.

JULI A GRI MES, Lieutenant

Al aska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety

5700 East Tudor Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 382; indicated
the state has an obligation to be aggressive in evaluating
har nf ul ness of sites and protecting public health.

TI M ROGERS, Legi sl ative Program Coordi nat or

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

P. 0. Box 196650

Anchor age, Al aska 99519

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 382; indicated
the bill sets up a very good process to ensure that properties
are made safe for future tenants.

KURT KORNCHUCK, Detective

Anchor age Pol i ce Depart nent

1630 East Tudor Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 382; indicated
illegal drug labs are a very big problem and that the bil
provides a trenendous benefit for people with children who
unknowi ngly rent these sites.

JANI CE ADAIR, Director

Di vi sion of Environnental Health
Departnent of Environnental Conservation
555 Cordova Street

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 1, 2002



Anchor age, Al aska 99501
PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 382; answered technical
guestions regarding testing of substances.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-12, SIDE A
Number 0001

CO-CHAIR DREW SCALZI called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:10 p.m Representatives Scal zi,
Masek, Fate, Kapsner, Chenault, and Stevens were present at the
call to order. Representatives MGQuire, Geen, and Kerttula
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 368- FI SHERY ENHANCEMENT LQANS

Nunmber 0010

CO CHAIR DREW SCALZI announced the first order of business,
HOUSE BILL NO 368, "An Act authorizing the comm ssioner of
community and econom c devel opnent to refinance and extend the
term of a fishery enhancenent loan." [Before the commttee was
CSHB 368( FSH) . ]

Nunmber 0089

JOHN MANLY, Staff to Representative John Harris, Al aska State
Legi slature, presented HB 368 on behalf of Representative
Harris, sponsor. M. Mnly told the conmttee the bill would
allow the comm ssioner to reduce interest rates and perhaps
extend the termon the fisheries enhancenent |oan to ensure that
the hatcheries are nore viable.

Nunber 0275

GREG W NEGAR, Director, Division of Investnents, Departnent of
Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent (DCED), explained that [HB
368] would allow aquaculture associations to refinance existing
|l oans and thereby take advantage of Jlower interest rates
[presently] in effect; the process is simlar to that for a

honeowner refinancing a hone | oan. He said [DCED] has the
ability under the commercial fishing revolving |oan fund. M.
Wnegar nentioned that simlar legislation was passed a few
years ago. He said a nunber of comercial fishernmen are also

refinancing their loans at this tine

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 1, 2002



MR. W NEGAR indicated although there will be an inpact on the
[revenue], as shown in the fiscal note, this won't adversely
i npact the fund, which is very strong; furthernore, the fund is
conpletely revolving and doesn't get any noney from the general
fund, so it won't inpact the integrity of that fund. He pointed

out that lowering the interest rate on these loans wll inprove
the financial picture of [aquaculture] associations, so it wll
increase their ability to service existing debt. Finally, [HB
368] will not have an negative inpact from an admnistrative
st andpoi nt . There is a very streamlined process in place to
handle these kinds of requests and it won't create any
difficulties, he said. In response to a question from Co-Chair

Scal zi, he said DCED has no difficulties with [HB 368]; the
official position is neutral.

CO CHAIR SCALZI asked M. Wnegar if he had contacted the
Department of Revenue and [determined] that the fiscal inpact
woul d be mnimal to the fund itself.

MR W NEGAR answered in the affirnative.

Number 0516

JOHN CARTER, Director, Douglas Island Pink & Chum Inc. (DI PAC),
testified before the commttee. He reported that during a
presentation of the fish caucus, the MDowell Goup had
denonstrated that the enhancenent program across the state has
become a serious econom c engine for Al aska. He said, "In the
| ast ten years, the economc output - the first whol esal e val ue
- was sonething on the order of $1.4 billion." G ven the
troubled tinmes occurring now, he said those kinds of nunbers are
very inportant. In 2000, it was over $200 nmllion, and
approximately $7 mllion to $10 mllion in sport-fish revenue

t hrough charters and so forth.

MR. CARTER told nenbers the MDowell G oup's presentation was
interesting because [it highlighted] how many areas of the state
are inpact ed. He said the situation is "use or pay." It used
to be that the state, through the Al aska Departnent of Fish and
Ganmre (ADF&G), paid for the enhancenent program in Alaska wth
annual appropriations. He explained that fishernmen pay a
percentage to their regional [aquaculture association] for the
enhancenment and cost-recovery, so the state doesn't really have
to pay out anyt hing.

MR. CARTER referred to questions about the general fund. He
offered his thinking that there's a positive inpact because the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 1, 2002



raw fish tax adds up to between $1 million and $2 mllion

annual ly, which goes into the general fund. A simlar anount
goes to conmunities where the noney was raised or where the fish
were caught. He said he thinks it's good business to allow
refinancing; in private industry, it's going on across the
country. It would help hatcheries becone nore financially sound
and, in mny cases, wuld allow nore fish to get to the
fishermen. In the case of DIPAC, for exanple, he said a |ot of
what "we" do is for the sport fish community; it's one nore
chance to allow "us" to do that work. He told the commttee

that he woul d appreciate support of [HB 368].

CO CHAIR SCALZI remarked that it was a very good presentation at
the fish caucus; noreover, the hatcheries did a great job

showing the financial inpact to the state. He referred to an
i nformati on sheet and said about 11 hatcheries will be affected
by [HB 368]. He said if the loans are received today, they

could be as low as 6 percent, conpared to 9 percent. He pointed
out that the savings on the interest the hatcheries [realize]
goes directly to the comon property; noreover, it would offset
the expenses of running a hatchery, so there is nore available
for the harvesters. He remarked that any savings to the
hat chery is, in turn, put back into the econony.

Number 0871

DAVE COBB, Business Manager, Valdez Fisheries Devel opnent
Associ ation (VFDA), testified via teleconference. M. Cobb told
the commttee [HB 368] is one of the "tools" needed by the
commercial fishing industry and the hatchery system to remain
conpetitive in today's global fisheries environnent. The
refinancing of hatchery loans at the prevailing interest rate
will allow nost hatcheries to reduce their annual |oan paynents
and cost of operations significantly, he said. Any reduction in
the overall operation budget of VFDA will nean nore fish to the
comercial fishernmen in the area.

MR. COBB said VFDA believes although this bill is inmportant to
the state hatchery system it is only one of nmany changes that
must occur if the Alaskan fishing industry is to survive. The
hat chery system established by the legislature in 1974 has net
or exceeded expectations, he suggested. The commercial common
property harvest [of] hatchery sal non exceeds 1 billion pounds;
t here has been an ex-vessel value of nore than $340 mllion over
the last ten years. Every opportunity the hatchery system has
to becone nore cost-effective and cost-efficient only makes good
busi ness sense, he added.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 1, 2002



MR. COBB told nenbers, "W have been good stewards of the public
funds entrusted to us to raise fish; this bill allows us to
manage those funds nore effectively and efficiently.” He
suggested the conpetitive playing field has changed for Al aska
from a strong market presence to massive global conpetition in
dunping fisheries products on the narket at |ess than the cost
of production. Al aska, VFDA, and all industry players nust
change in order to survive in this conpetitive (globa
mar ket pl ace, he said. He reiterated that [HB 368] nakes good

busi ness sense and wll have no inpact on the general fund
dol | ars.

Nunmber 1034

REPRESENTATI VE FATE remarked that [HB 368] is a good bill. He

referred to [page 3, paragraph (11)] and suggested adding, "or a
condition which jeopardizes the fishery or the hatchery,"” after
the word "borrower". He indicated this would give the
conmi ssioner a better tool in ascertaining the condition of that
fishery and possibly allowing a blanket reduction of term if
applied for. He indicated that [the suggested change] would
create fairness and extend the bill to do a better job.

MR. WNEGAR said he didn't have any difficulty with adding that
| anguage, which would [result in] broader abilities. He added
that the current wording al so works wel|.

CO CHAIR  SCALZI expressed concern about an unf or eseen
consequence.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Wnegar if there is a risk of
having a problemwi th his fiduciary duty in the trust.

MR. W NEGAR expl ai ned that each [borrower] would be | ooked at on
an individual basis, which is how [the departnent] handles this.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked M. Wnegar how a fishery is
| ooked at, and whether the [suggested |anguage change] is
unnecessary and runs the risk of "opening you up sonehow. "

MR WNEGAR reiterated that each would be |ooked at on an
i ndividual basis, to ensure that the particular aquaculture

association is in good standing. He said he didn't think the
[ suggest ed | anguage change] would preclude [the departnent] from
doi ng so. He said there is a streanlined process, but the

[ borrower] would need to apply for the refinancing.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 1, 2002



Nunmber 1336

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS request ed clarification of t he
"conditions" in the [suggested | anguage change].

REPRESENTATI VE FATE offered the exanple of a borrower that is a

fleet [belonging to a conpany]. He remarked, "If that fleet
were to go under because you didn't extend the term it would
af f ect the fishery, and that has to be taken into
consi deration.” He said he was thinking beyond just the
i ndi vidual borrower and of the effect it mght have on a fishery
under certain circunstances. He said he wanted to expand [the
| anguage] so the departnment wasn't "hand-tied."” The perception
woul d be that there would be an even playing field. Thi s goes
beyond the perception, he said - it goes to the actual world of

fi nance where things can happen. He nentioned the recent Enron
[financial collapse] and how it affected the entire financial
wor | d.

CO CHAI R SCALZI expressed concerns that the present fisheries
and the state of the |oan prograns are very "touchy." He said
he can appreciate the concern and the broadening of the term
but without having a | ot of discussion about what [the suggested
| anguage change] would nmean from a | egal standpoint, it mght be

[better] to leave it as it is. In regard to hardship on the
borrower, the departnment has a good latitude of how far [a
borrower] can go, he said. He said he would be nervous about

tying the fishery in, because the fisheries are in jeopardy now.
Mor eover, he said he wouldn't want to put undue pressure on the
departnent to extend a | oan that was bad.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE agreed it warranted discussion. He
recounted a personal experience that made him famliar wth what
can happen when these | oans occur.

COCHAIR MASEK referred to backup in the Dbill packet .
Currently, she said, DCED is unable to refinance |oans from the
Fi sheries Enhancenent Revolving Loan Fund for the hatchery
system simlarly, prior to 1993, loans from the other fund -
the Commercial Fisheries Revolving Loan Fund - could not be
refinanced. This change [provides] that the hatcheries would be
asking for conparable changes for their industry, resulting in
nore fish to conmmercial and sports fishernen, she read. She
indicated that if HB 368 is enacted, she would Ilike nore
equality in the expenditure for sport-catch species for king and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 1, 2002



coho sal non because currently pink and chum sal non are primrily
targeted. She remarked that she'd like it [applied equally].

CO CHAIR MASEK continued to read, "Currently, approximtely 40
percent of Alaska's entire salnon harvest is enhanced fish.”

She continued, "Salnmon are also produced that are taken by
resident and nonresident sports fishernen and utilized in the
personal use fisheries." From that perspective, she said,

favorable financing rates would be a normal business practice.
She indicated she is a cosponsor of HB 368. She nentioned that
she would |ike to nove HB 368 out of committee because the bil
could help in all paranmeters of fishing.

CO CHAIR SCALZI said the amount of fish that goes to sport and
personal use is in excess of a substantial anmount that is paid
for through the "commercial fisheries enhancenent pact." He
said it's very beneficial to both sport and personal use, as
well as commercial use, even though it's paid for out of the
revenue through the enhancenent pact.

Nunber 1745

REPRESENTATIVE MGU RE noved to report CSHB 368(FSH) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
zero fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB 368(FSH) was
noved out of the House Resources Standing Conmittee.

COCHAIR SCALZI called a brief at-ease at 1:34 p.m, which
| asted until 1:36 p.m [He turned the gavel over to Co-Chair
Masek. ]

HB 376-FI SH & GAME | N NAVI GABLE WATERS

Number 1800

CO- CHAI R MASEK announced the next order of business, HOUSE BILL
NO. 376, "An Act relating to managenent of fish and gane in and
on the navi gable waters and submerged | ands of Al aska."

Nunber 1815

REPRESENTATI VE SCOTT OGAN, Alaska State Legislature, testified
via teleconference as sponsor of HB 376. He referred to AS
16. 020. 010 and explained that the state had not assented to
federal control of the Alaska Departnent of Fish and Gane
(ADF&G) and those areas set apart as national bird and wildlife
refuges when Alaska was a U S. territory. He said |egislation

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- March 1, 2002



was enacted when Alaska becane a state. He said apparently
there was a dispute over control of ADF&G and those areas: the
state wanted to say unequivocally that it didn't assent to
control of those areas. He indicated it was his [prior] change
to have [AS 16.20.010(a) read, as found on page 2, Section 2,
subparagraph (B), of the current bill]: "d acier Bay Nationa
Park and Preserve or the navigable waters within or adjoining
the park and preserve".

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN noted that a point of contention is still in
the courts; noreover, it's a case the governor has not dropped,
asserting state control of the subnerged |ands and the resources
in GJacier Bay National Park and Preserve. He recalled that
there was a buyout program in place after the [National] Park
Service (NPS) decided comercial fishing boats were an eyesore
to the cruise ships there, although he suggested it was probably

t he opposite: people on cruise ships |look outward and don't
realize how obtrusive [their ships] are. Commercial fishing was
deened an inappropriate activity in dacier Bay, he noted. He
mentioned that the bill was passed at that tinme and was w dely
support ed.

Nunber 1992

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN remarked that the situation is interesting
because the governor didn't pursue the lawsuit in John v. United
States [known as the Katie John case] to the U S. Suprene Court,
even though he'd previously said no governor of any state should
ever voluntarily relinquish authority back to the federa
gover nnent , and that he believed it was hi s "cl ear
responsibility, even in the face of a difficult political
battle, to vigorously defend this inportant aspect of state
sovereignty."

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said the federal governnent, through the
reserved water rights doctrine, has taken over managenent of
subsi stence fishing in state sovereign waters. He referred to
the Totenoff case and said the state suprene court unaninously
ruled that subnmerged |and gives ownership of title to and
managenent powers over | ands beneath navi gable waters of Al aska,
navi gable waters thenselves, and fish and other marine Ilife
| ocated in Alaska's navigable waters. Mor eover, navi gabl e
waters are generally not public |lands under the Al aska Nationa
I nterest Lands Conservation Act (AN LCA).

Nunber 2188

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 1, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said the [federal] Subnerged Lands Act of
1953 specifically gives the state authority over fish and

animals in navigable waters and precludes [navigational]
servitude or reserved rights from being used to erode that
authority. He said [navigational] servitude and reserved water

rights are not interests to which title can be held. He offered
hi s understanding that both servitude and reserved water rights
are limted interests, and do not give the federal governnent
power over navigable reserved waters unrelated to those areas.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN offered his understanding that the Al aska
Suprenme Court is not bound by decisions of federal courts other
than the U S. Suprene Court on questions of federal |aw He
said [the state] has the right to nmanage its resources. He said
the Subnmerged Lands Act was nentioned in the Statehood Act, and
it was nentioned that Alaska was adnmitted to [statehood] on an
equal footing with the rest of the states; this included the
1953 Subnerged Lands Act, which gave to the states fee-sinple
title [to] subnerged lands and the right to control the
resources wthin those subnerged | ands. Referring to a
Subnerged Lands Act handout he'd provided, Representative QOgan
read from a portion that said, "... the US. releases and
relinquishes to the states all rights, title and interest it may
have, unless otherwise reserved, in lands, inprovenents and
nat ural resources beneath or within the navigable waters".

Nunmber 2269

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN nentioned a case in which [U S Suprene
Court] Justice Sandra Day O Connor wote that the state has a
right to control fishing. He explained that Section 1 [of HB
376] has a [nunber] of legislative findings; Section 2, 1in
addition to the other areas, says [the state] doesn't assent to
federal control and lists the navigable waters and subnerged
| ands; and Section 3 tal ks about various findings and recogni zes
that the state hasn't assented to federal control and that the
federal governnent cannot conmandeer the |awraki ng processes of
the state to conpel the state to enact and enforce a federal
regul atory program Indicating there is case law fromthe U'S
Supreme Court, he said this section also nentions that it
doesn't prohibit the agency or an agent from taking an action
necessary to protect life or property, conmenting on federal
statutes or regulations, or participating and cooperating wth
t he established prograns.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN, in response to Representative MQire,
clarified that the bill adds a new subsection in Section 3;

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 1, 2002



however, it doesn't <change Title 16 on those other four
[ paragraphs in AS 16.20.010(b)]. Aside from Section 2, nothing
el im nates existing statute.

Number 2491

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER nentioned the constitutional mandate to
manage for sustained yield. She asked Representative Ogan if he
thought it irresponsible to prohibit state managers from working
with federal managers.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said the problemis that the [state] doesn't
have the ability to manage those resources for subsistence use
because the [federal governnent] has taken over. He said the
federal governnent doesn't have an obligation to nmanage on a
sustained vyield [basis], and prior to statehood the federal
government didn't nanage for sustained vyield. He indicated the
federal governnent would be prohibited from conpelling the state
to enact and enforce a federal regulatory program He nentioned
that he thought ADF&G had a clear responsibility to [nonitor the

federal governnent's managenent of resources]. He suggested
ADF&G can comment on proposed federal statutes and regul ations.
He added, "It just is saying that we don't assent to their
control; it's a matter of fundamental state sovereignty.”

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER offered her understanding that federa
| aw preenpts any state |aw, across the board.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN replied that federal law didn't preenpt
state law, furthernore, it gave the state the right to mnage
its resources. Moreover, he said the Al aska Suprenme Court
unani nously agreed to that position in the Totenoff case, and
there is a mandate from the [Alaska] Suprene Court that the
state, not the federal governnent, nmanage its resources.
Representative Ogan said the [Al aska] Suprene Court has [rul ed]
that the state is not obligated to follow any court ruling on
the issue other than [from] the United States Suprene Court. He
said when the governor decided to "cede sovereign authority"” to
the federal governnent [by not pursuing the lawsuit], he ignored
the constitution, the state's sovereignty, and the [Al aska]
Suprenme Court.

Nunmber 2666

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if the goal is to regain state
managenent .

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- March 1, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said, "Sure." He nentioned the governor's
statenents about not voluntarily relinquishing authority and why
he had to appeal the case.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA suggested the state should be nonitoring
and participating [with the federal governnent's managenent of
resources] to get as nuch information as possible. She
expressed concern that the bill mght Iimt that ability.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN said he didn't believe that was the

intention of HB 376. The bill would allow the state to have its
biologists [nonitor] the federal [ governnent], comment on
proposed federal statutes and regulations, and still fund the
posi tions. Representative QOgan acknow edged that HB 376 is
basically posturing until the matter is settled in court. He

poi nted out that this had been done [regarding] G acier Bay.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA reiterated her concern about t he
| anguage of HB 376.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER pointed out that Representative Ogan's
answer to a previous question had made it sound as though the
reason the state has federal nmanagenent is because the governor
didn't appeal the Katie John case. Representati ve Kapsner
suggested the reason the state has federal managenent, however,
is because the state has failed to conply with AN LCA The
federal government allowed the state three noratoriunms so it
could cone into conpliance, but the legislature refused, she
recal | ed. She nentioned a legislative renedy of putting a vote
to the public to change the constitution to cone into conpliance
wi th AN LCA She said the court is not the solution to the
subsi stence [issue].

Nunmber 2836

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN referred to the Totenoff case, which he said
[found] that navigable waters are generally not public |ands
under ANl LCA. He said the Subnerged Lands Act of 1953
specifically gave state authority over fish and animals in
navi gabl e waters; noreover, it nentioned navigational servitude
or reserved rights. He nentioned that the federal governnent
has maintained that it has the right to manage fish up to three
mles [fromthe coastline], which the Al aska Suprenme Court found
to be incorrect. Furthernore, the Al aska Suprene Court is not
bound by decisions of federal courts other than the U S. Suprene
Court on questions of federal |aw, he suggested.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- March 1, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE OGAN offered his belief that HB 376 is consistent
with the Al aska Supreme Court's ruling. He offered his opinion
that the governor's actions have nade Alaska a second-class
state, not on equal footing with the other states of the Union

Representative Ogan said 14 other states had filed am cus curiae
briefs on [Alaska's] behalf in the John v. United States suit
because they worry about their sovereign rights as states to
manage their resources. This sets a precedent that goes far
beyond the State of Al aska, he said. He nentioned remarks from
[US. ] Senator Murkowski about appealing the John v. United
States case. Representative QOgan again suggested that this
issue is not about subsistence, but about Alaska's sovereign
rights as a state.

TAPE 02-12 SIDE B
Number 2990

REPRESENTATI VE FATE i ndi cated his reason for cosponsoring HB 376
was because there had been no adjudication by the [Al aska]
Suprene Court in contract |aw. He said the Subnerged Lands Act
of 1953 is incorporated within the Statehood Act and the conpact
that the people of Al aska signed saying that conpact is no
| onger wvalid. He agreed that ordinarily congressional |[|aws
supersede state law, but not contract |aw To get the [issue]
adj udi cated by a court of the land is probably going to be the
only way to settle the issue of the Subnmerged Lands Act, he
suggest ed. He said the [Subnmerged Lands Act] was [related] not
to subsistence, but rather to the sovereign right to manage
navi gabl e wat erways. He indicated there hasn't been harnony
between the federal governnent [and the state] as it endeavors
to manage a state waterway and [ ADF&G

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN nentioned that he thought the federa
governnment didn't honor the deals nade at statehood.

Nunber 2842

DICK BISHOP, Alaska Qutdoor Council (AOC), testified via
tel econference, informng the commttee that AOC supports HB
376. Moreover, he said AOC believes it is inportant to
reenphasi ze  what the Alaska Suprene Court has al ready
enunci at ed: the state's authority over navigable waters and

subnerged |ands, and the managenent of resources found there.
He said AOC appreciates the recognition of the state's public-
trust responsibility for renewable resources. However, it's
al so inportant to ensure that the state, in its efforts to be a
good neighbor and to ensure sound conservation of resources,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- March 1, 2002



does not contribute to the perception of federal authority where
none exists, he said. This bill addresses that potenti al
problem while also citing federal |laws that authorize legitinmate
federal authority. Therefore, AOC urges the passage of HB 376
to ensure the authorities are clear and that the state's
authority and responsibility is clear and is followed, he said.

MVR. BISHOP told nenbers he doesn't believe federal | aw
supersedes state law in all cases. There are limtations that
vary from federal law to federal law, for exanple, it has often
been cited that the federal governnent has nanagenent authority
for fish and ganme on public lands through the property clause,
but that's not necessarily the case unless Congress has

specifically said that should be the case. Anot her exanple is
that nowhere in ANILCA was that specific authority given to the
federal governnent by Congress; consequently, that's still an

open question, even though it has not been adequately pursued in
court, he told nenbers.

Number 2703
REPRESENTATI VE OGAN asked M. Bishop if he was aware of the case

of New York v. United States. He read from the case [origina
text provided]:

This case instead concerns the circunstances under
which Congress may use the States as inplenents of
regulation; that is, whether Congress may direct or
otherwise notivate the States to regulate in a
particular field or a particular way. Qur cases have
established a few principles that guide our resolution
of the issue. As an initial matter, Congress may not
sinply "conmandee[r] the legislative processes of the
States by directly conpelling them to enact and
enforce a federal regulatory program” Hodel v.
Virginia Surface Mning & Reclanmation Assn., Inc., 452
U S. 264, 288 (1981).

MR. BISHOP indicated he wasn't famliar with the aforenentioned
case. He said it's very reassuring that there are limtations
on the reach of the federal governnent in conpelling states to
do things they mght not otherwise be willing to do. He said it
is a good exanple that the federal government does not, in all
cases, have the option of preenpting the state's authority. He
nmentioned that ownership, authority, and responsibility for
managenent of navigable waters have been granted to the states
and upheld until the circunstances in Al aska. M. Bishop spoke

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- March 1, 2002



about limtations and lack of clarity on the relative
authorities of federal and state governnents in the managenent
of fish and wildlife and renewabl e resources in the state.

Nunmber 2565

CO CHAIR MASEK nentioned the Subnerged Lands Act. She spoke
about the intent of Congress, the appeal to the Ninth Crcuit
Court, and the inpact on the state. She asked if [HB 376] would
clear up [the issue].

MR, BISHOP said he thought it would clear it up by laying out
the matters of law and the relative authorities; however, it
won't clear up what authority the state will be able to retain
and what authority the federal governnment wll attenpt to
assunme. \What the federal governnment assunes and what it chooses
to do wunder the [John v. United States] ruling wll be
consistent with the ruling, he said. He indicated that the
federal government is not going to subside in its position
because of the passage of HB 376. It is an inportant expression
of a recognition of the state's sovereignty with regard to the
ownership, authority, and responsibility over navigable waters
and subnerged | ands, he concl uded.

Number 2463

CO CHAIR MASEK referred to a set of docunents in the conmttee
packet, the first page of which was headed, "Al aska Di gest Emai
News; Septenber 3-9, 2001; Mirkowski Lanments State Decision Not
To Appeal 9th Circuit Case." She offered an excerpt attributed
to U.S. Senator Mirkowski, which read:

"Even if we succeed in passing a constitutiona
anendnent to protect subsistence and solve the
subsi stence problem which | have supported and wl|
continue to work for, Alaskans will not be afforded
the chance to recover control over state waters, which
t he Governor has chosen to give away."

MR, BISHOP offered his belief that if the state were to adopt a
rural subsistence-priority amendnent in its constitution, it
woul dn't solve the dilemma relating to state sovereignty in
navi gabl e waters. Moreover, it would address the ability of the
state to assune the responsibility for adm nistering the federa
| aw, but wouldn't return managenent to the State of Al aska, he
sai d. The state would be obligated to inplenment the terns of
federal law, and the federal court would enforce them He said

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- March 1, 2002



that was the situation that existed from 1986 to 1989, when the
state was in conformty with the federal law. If the state were
to cone into conformty with the federal subsistence |aw [now,
then the same terns would dictate the state's operation
[regarding] the state's inplenentation of that federal |aw It
| eaves the issue of authority of the state over navigable waters
unresol ved, he added.

Nunber 2314

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA referred to John v. United States and
of fered her wunderstanding that the court had said if the state
followed ANILCA and changed the state constitution, then the
state would regain jurisdiction over navigable waters.

MR BISHOP said he didn't recall that particular passage.
However, if that was [the case], then perhaps the issue is that
the state would be able to inplenent the federal law with regard
to the regulation of subsistence uses. It wouldn't necessarily
affect the state's options or autonony in deciding other
questions with regard to the use of navigable waters, he said.
He asked how it would relate to tinber harvests, tourism or
m ning, for exanple. M. Bishop said if those are federal
reserved waters and the authority of the federal governnent
remai ns unchal | enged, then the federal policies would prevail on
what can and cannot be done, regardless of what the state
t hi nks. If the rural priority [were] in the constitution, then
the state would be conpelled to admnister subsistence
regul ati ons consistent with federal |aw, he said.

Nunber 2212

CO-CHAIR MASEK nentioned the issue of judicial oversight
extendi ng toward the navi gabl e waters.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA referred to page 704 of John v. United

St at es. She reiterated her point that the court said [the
state] could resune nmanagenent of subsistence uses on public
| ands i ncluding navigable waters. She added [referring to the

Kati e John case]:

It never reached any of the other issues, and ... |
think that this is segueing over into sone kind of an
argunent that just doesn't exist anynore. ... This
was a subsistence case; it's a subsistence argunent.
The court may have reached sonmewhat to get there, but
that's what it concerns. So, just from nmy standpoint,

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- March 1, 2002



| am not as concerned, as we seem to be building this
concern up about other issues.

Nunber 2161

MR, BISHOP said he couldn't disagree nore. He offered his
belief that clearly the federal jurisdiction on reserved waters
under the John v. United States decision goes far beyond the
issue of the provision for subsistence uses. Furthernore, he
suggested, the court failed to recognize that in meking that
statenent, and doesn't have a clue about what is or isn't state
managenent . When [the court] said fish and gane [nanagenent]
would return to the state, that is sinply not the case; it's not
atypical of the Ninth GCrcuit Court to make that kind of leap in
| ogi c, he contended.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said the Ninth Grcuit Court can say what it
wants, but the [Al aska] Suprene Court said [Alaska] is not bound
by those decisions. He nentioned that reserved water rights are
precluded from being used to erode that authority, and that the
[ Al aska] Supreme Court cannot be ignored. He added, "We have
this authority, and that's all this bill does."

Number 1999

COCHAIR MASEK indicated HB 376 would be held for further
consi derati on.

HB 382- CLEANUP OF | LLEGAL DRUG SI TES

Nunber 1982

CO CHAI R MASEK announced the next order of business, HOUSE BILL
NO. 382, "An Act relating to the evaluation and cl eanup of sites
where certain controlled substances may have been manufactured
or stored.™

Number 1971

REPRESENTATI VE GRETCHEN GUESS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 382, told the conmttee that when an illegal [drug
manuf acturing] |aboratory is raided in Al aska, |aw enforcenent
sends the residential property owner notice [of the raid] and
renoves major contam nants [from the site]. However, there are
no guidelines or any direction for the [property] owner on how
to clean up the site before [another tenant] noves in or the
[ property] is sold. There is no penalty if the [property owner]

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- March 1, 2002



decides to repaint the walls and rent the property rather than

clean it up. She said there are responsible [property] owners
who want to clean up the sites, but the state doesn't have
gui delines set forth. However, other [property] owners aren't

so responsible and rent the site, even though there could stil
be [drug residue] on the walls and in the carpet, which could
pose a health hazard to [an occupant].

Nunber 1798

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS turned attention to Section 2 and said it
woul d provide direction regarding the cleanup of an [illegal
drug] site. The law enforcenent agency would notify the
property owner and the departnment, and the owner would be
provided with guidelines for cleaning up the site.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS poi nted out that the [cleanup] would be the
responsibility of the property owner, and the state wouldn't pay
any part of that. The bill stipulates that if the site is to be
used for residential purposes, then it nust be cleaned up. She
said the [property] owner has the choice not to clean up, but
the site cannot be occupied or sold until it is done.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS turned attention to [proposed AS 46.03. 510]
and said the property has to be determned fit for use before it
can be transferred, sold, |eased, or rented. Also, it makes any
current contracts on the property voidable, but it doesn't make
any past contracts voidable, so a nortgage would still be valid,
for exanple. Property can be sold if witten disclosure is nmade
to the prospective transferee or purchaser that the property has
been determned to be an illegal drug manufacturing site and
hasn't been determned to be fit for use. Furt hernore, [under
subsection (c)] a person who know ngly uses, transfers, sells,
| eases, rents, or occupies property of [in violation of the
section] is guilty of a class A m sdeneanor.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA referred to page 3, lines 21-23, and
asked why the disclosure doesn't acconpany the transfer of a
sal e docunent.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS deferred to Nat han Johnson.

Nunber 1650

NATHAN JOHNSQN, Staff to Representative Getchen Guess, Al aska

State Legi sl ature, answer ed t hat t he reason for t he
af orenenti oned provision is because of concern in the real-

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- March 1, 2002



estate community about having the disclosure recorded. That
would create a [permanent] record, which sone people find
obj ecti onabl e. He said that was an effort to appease that
concern.

CO CHAIR MASEK renmarked that if the property owner conplied,
then it wouldn't be necessary [to record the disclosure].

REPRESENTATIVE QGUESS offered that if [the disclosure] was
recorded, it would be a [pernmanent] record.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if sale of the property would be
permtted if the property wasn't cleaned up. She al so inquired
whet her there would still be protection for the buyer.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS answered in the affirmative. She turned
attention to [proposed AS 45.03.520] and said the Departnent of
Envi ronmental Conservation (DEC) would establish procedures for
testing the property and establish a list of |aboratories in the
state that have the capacity to perform the testing procedures.
This is to ensure that the property owner uses a |aboratory that
can performthe appropriate testing of the property.

Nunmber 1455

REPRESENTATI VE  GQUESS  brought attention to [ proposed AS
46.03.530] and nentioned the four substances [l|ead, nercury,
nmet hanphet am nes, and vol atile organi c conpounds] that are known
to cause health hazards, and that the departnment would set forth
in regulation the levels required to be nmet for [determ ning]

fitness. She said this was put into regulation, rather than
into statute, because science constantly changes regardi ng what
| evel s are appropriate. She nentioned concerns that there are

many nore chemcals which are harnful, and that there's not an
easy way for those to be [included] in regulation or statute.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS hi ghlighted [proposed AS 46.03.540]. She
told nenbers it is inmportant that the guidelines are followed,
not only so the [site] is safely cleaned up, but also so that
the hazardous material is disposed of correctly. She nenti oned
t hat di sposal has been nore of a problemthan anything el se.

Number 1358
REPRESENTATI VE GUESS turned attention to [proposed AS 46. 03. 550]

and indicated the determ nation would be made by the departnent
regardi ng whether a property would be fit for use if the owner

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- March 1, 2002



had submtted satisfactory evidence to the departnent that the
property was cleaned up according to the guidelines, that
testing had been perforned, and that it had been determ ned that
the chem cal |evels neet the requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE  GQUESS  brought attention to [ proposed AS
46. 03.560] and indicated the section sets forth the nunber of
days from the tine the property owner receives notice that the
owner has to conply. Regardi ng [proposed AS 46.03.570], she
indicated the section sets forth the duties of the departnent
and regul ati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS nentioned an outline that highlights the

general inpacts of the illegal [manufacturing] labs and the
health [risks] involved, especially in regard to lead and
mercury. She addressed questions that she'd received regarding

HB 382. The first question asked was why the [property owner]
isn't [required] to clean up the [site] if the owner isn't going
to [rent or sell] it. Her response was that the levels of
[ hazardous chem cals] are harnful if there is an occupant
[living in the site], but not if it is vacant. She added that
it seenmed "overreaching” to tell the [property owner] that
he/she had to [clean up the site if it was vacant]. She added
that there is no disclosure [required] at this tine.

Nunber 1281

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS said there were l|lots of questions on why
DEC [woul d be the adm nistering departnent]. She expl ained that
in states with simlar statutes, the responsible departnment is
usual ly health and social services. However, it would be nore
expensive to have [a departnent other than DEC adm nister the
provi sion] because DEC already has the equipnment and the
procedures in place. The fiscal note reflects a cost of $10, 000
to [initiate the program and $2,000 a year [in expenses]
thereafter. She added that putting the responsibility with [the
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)] "would have
been a whol e new position and departnment, which didn't seem very
responsi ble.”

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS reported that Oregon and Washington State
have [addressed this issue]. Washington [State] is finding that
it should have [addressed] this at a state level [rather than] a
|l ocal level. Alaska has many small conmunities, she noted, and
[it doesn't make sense] to force the local governnent to have
the expertise; it is nore efficiently done at a state |evel.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- March 1, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE GUESS highlighted letters of support from the
Anchorage Police Departnent, the Al aska State Troopers, and

[municipalities]. She nentioned that Al aska State Troopers have
been put in the position of telling a property owner there has
been an illegal [manufacturing] site, but they haven't been able

to direct the owner anywhere to ensure the site is cleaned up.
Nunber 1130

REPRESENTATI VE MGUJ RE asked if there is any recourse for a
[ property owner] to civilly recover the [cost] of cleaning up
the site.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS answered that she hadn't addressed that
issue. She said her intent was that the option should be open
She sai d she doesn' t t hi nk it IS t he government's
responsibility; it's the [owner's] responsibility because it is
that person's property. She said it is costly to test and cl ean
up, and that she has no problem with [recovering those] costs.
She nentioned that she is wunsure whether [a nethod for

recovering costs] should be included in the bill, but said she
is wlling to look into it and ensure that the option is
avai |l abl e.

Nunber 0959

MR, JOHNSON suggested that al nost every existing housing |ease
woul d cover that situation and give the [property owner] civil
recour se.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE agreed that nost | eases would [provide an
avenue] for civil recourse. She said, however, she would I|ike
to have a specific right of action in the bill for the property
owner to recover those actual fees and costs that incur.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS indicated she would address the [cost-
recovery] issue.

Nunmber 0860

CO-CHAIR SCALZI asked if the bill was in the current commttee -
rather than the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Commttee - because DEC would be the [adm nistering
entity].

REPRESENTATI VE GQUESS answered in the affirnative.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -23- March 1, 2002



Nunmber 0800

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER requested an estinmate of the nunber of
[il]legal manufacturing] |abs located in rural Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS referred the question to the Al aska State
Tr oopers. She nentioned that the [illegal manufacturing | abs]
are a problem in Anchorage; because of aggressive |aw
enforcenment efforts in that area, the |abs are noving toward the
Mat anuska- Susitna area and Kenai . She said according to the
Al aska State Troopers, there are sone |abs in Ketchikan. She
referred to the chemcals involved in illegal l|abs and the
transportati on needed. Fortunately, she said, there have not
been [illegal labs] found in rural Al aska. She al so nentioned
that there would be additional costs for the testing to be done
in rural areas.

CO- CHAIR MASEK referred to an article from the Frontiersman in
Wasilla, dated February 15, 2002, which said Palner's district
attorney office has received 54 new "neth" [nethanphetam ne]
cases to prosecute this quarter, conpared to Anchorage's 57 new
cases for the sane period. She indicated the problemis grow ng
in that region.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER nment i oned a case i nvol vi ng a
[ met hanphetam ne] lab found in Juneau in a duplex. She said the
nei ghbori ng tenants' infant had experienced [increased] sickness
[during that tine]. She asked what the recourse was for the
parent of a young child who has sustained health problens
because of a met hanphet am ne | ab.

REPRESENTATIVE GUESS offered her understanding that there
woul dn't be recourse under HB 382 because it only addresses
cleanup of the site. She asked [M. Johnson]: |If there were an
illegal manufacturing lab in a duplex, could the other side
still be rented out?

Nunmber 0583

MR, JOHNSON answered that it would be at the discretion of the
police officers involved, depending on the heating system if
there was a forced air system for exanple, the chemcals could
be spread throughout the entire duplex. M. Johnson also said
that in ternms of recourse, HB 382 does address it. He nentioned
that other states have worked on legislation specifically to
address [illegal manufacturing |labs'] effects on children and to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- March 1, 2002



increase penalties, which could be <considered in future
| egi sl ati on.

Number 0534

REPRESENTATI VE FATE referred to AS 46.03.530 and asked why
asbestos wasn't included in the [bill].

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS i ndi cated asbestos isn't a chem cal used in
manuf acturing illegal drugs.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said asbestos is used when there is a |arge
anount of heat in a specific area; although asbestos hasn't been
used in quite sone tine, it is readily available. Mor eover ,
asbestos used in those labs is usually secondhand, which is nore
danger ous, he suggest ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GQUESS deferred to M. Johnson.

MR. JOHNSON said none of the other states [HB 382 was nodel ed
after] had a problem with asbestos at nethanphetam ne |lab sites.
He added that although it mght exist at sone sites, this [issue
addressed in the bill] relates to specific things wused in
nmet hanphet am ne | abs only, because "we don't want people ... to
feel as though, as we conme for a drug lab, that we're looking to
address ot her shortcom ngs of their property.”

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS referred back to Representative Fate's

guesti on. She said the [specific |anguage] referring to the
four substances [was included] because those are the known four
[ substances used in drug | abs]. She indicated her two proposed

solutions [for later <changes as nore information becones
avai l able] were these: to sinply give DEC the authority to add
in regulation other substances known to be harnful; or to have
the legislature, after a year, evaluate whether there should be
a change [in statute reflecting such regulations inplenmented by

the DEC . She said she had anmendnents drawn up for both
scenari os. She told Representative Fate the problem is that
there could be other things that are used but which aren't
specified in the bill, "and we need to grapple with that."

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said asbestos is not general and is illega

to have in a public facility. It is not cumulative |like |ead,
[which is included in the bill], he said. He offered his view
that asbestos is nuch nore dangerous than |lead. He indicated he
woul d i ke asbestos to be added to the statute.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -25- March 1, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE GUESS indicated she wouldn't object to anending
HB 382 to include asbestos.

Nunber 0201

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS nentioned that [HB 382] is not intended
to correct conditions in honmes that haven't had illegal drug
manuf act uri ng. He offered his view that there are probably

rul es el sewhere which require that hones be safe.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE offered his belief that wusually asbestos
isn'"t found in the honme; it is brought in for protection against
the high [tenperature] necessary to manufacture [drugs].

Nunber 0077

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT nentioned that older-style [|inoleum
found in sonme hones is |laced with asbestos. He also said he has
concerns that sonme  of the aforenentioned chemcals are
potentially nore dangerous than the four [substances listed in
the statute]. He suggested that the scope of the bill be kept
to a met hanphetam ne [l ab] scenario.

CO- CHAI R MASEK remarked that she thought the [bill's scope was
bei ng broadened] too nuch.

TAPE 02-13, SIDE A
Number 0001

REPRESENTATI VE FATE proposed a conceptual anmendnent, to have the
| anguage read, "any harnful chem cal or substance associated
wi t h nmet hanphet am ne production”.

MR, JOHNSON suggested "clandestine" |ab, because although this
| egislation largely addresses neth |abs, other [drug |abs need
to be included]. He said the two anendnents [nentioned by
Representative GGuess] would open up the issue for DEC to
consi der and add chem cal s and substances in the future.

CO CHAIR MASEK referred to page 4 [lines 14-21], standard for
determining fitness, and said it was spelled out clearly and
didn't require nore itens to be added. What is already listed

should deal wth the bill's intent, to ensure that these
chemcals are going to be cleaned up and taken away, so that
whether it's a house or an apartnent, it would be cleaned up,
ready, and safe for soneone to rent. She asked that

Representative [Fate] withdraw his [conceptual anendnent].

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 26- March 1, 2002



Number 0275

REPRESENTATI VE FATE indicated the conceptual anmendnent was
wi t hdr awn.

Number 0304

JULIA GRIMES, Lieutenant, Al aska State Troopers, testified via
tel econference in support of HB 382. She said clandestine
nmet hanphet am ne | abs are a dangerous problem all over the United
States and, as with every drug trend, have reached Al aska. Law
enforcement in Al aska has heeded the experiences of states in
the Northwest and M dwest, taking an aggressive stance toward
detection and eradication of neth |[abs, and prosecuting suspects
found to be associated with them She explained that because of
t hat aggressive stance, the nunber in the state dropped from 50
|l abs in year 2000 to 21 labs in year 2001, based on statistics
fromthe annual drug report.

M5. GRIMES said detecting, eradicating, and prosecution are only
a part of the [solution]; she feels [Al aska] has an obligation
to be equally aggressive in evaluating how harnful the sites are
once they are vacated by |aw enforcenent officers and to protect
the health of innocent [people] seeking [a residence]. She
said, "W would just support this bill, and see it as being
anot her aggressive and progressive way to keep from getting
behind the eight ball, if you will, in a problemthat can easily
overrun an area, and a dangerous problem"”

Nunmber 0526

TIM ROGERS, Legislative Program Coordinator, Minicipality of
Anchorage, testified via tel econference. He told the commttee
[illegal manufacturing |aboratories] are an increasing problem
t hroughout Al aska that needs to be addressed. He said the
belief is that [HB 382] sets up a very good process to ensure
that properties are made safe for future tenants. Despite added
cost to rental property owners, he said the belief is that the

safety of the future definitely outweighs the added cost. He
concl uded, "W comend this bill to you for passage.”
Nunber 0597

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked if lead and nercury are part of the
manuf acturi ng process of these [types of] drugs.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -27- March 1, 2002



Nunmber 0605

KURT KORNCHUCK, Detective, Anchorage Police Departnent (APD),
via teleconference, answered that nercuric chloride and |ead
acetate are essential ingredients in a process for manufacturing

met hanphet am ne. He nentioned that asbestos is used in |arge-
scale drug manufacturing |abs, but hasn't been seen in Al aska
since 1996. Most of the heating is done on snall, portable

electric burners with glassware, rather than a commercial-type
reacti on vessel .

REPRESENTATI VE FATE asked if a [property owner] would be forced
to strip the walls if lead were found on them. He al so asked
whet her the background level is taken into consideration wth
regard t the | ead.

MR, KORNCHUCK said the [question] falls beyond [APD s] |evel of
expertise. He added:

We're very thankful for this kind of bill because
we're a little frustrated when we go in. O course
we're wearing all of the protective gear, protective
suits, breathing apparatus, rubber boots, and gl oves.
And when we |eave, we sinply notify the l|andlord and
post the property.

MR. KORNCHUCK said he didn't know what the testing procedures
entail. He nentioned that [illegal drug labs] are a very big
pr obl em He said when he'd worked on [enforcenent relating to]
cl andestine |aboratories in California, sonme |ocal heal t h
departnents would conme out [to the site] and take sanples so
they could have an idea of the manufacturing process and what
they should | ook for when they went back in, to give a piece of
property a clean bill of health.

Number 0810

MR.  KORNCHUCK concluded by saying HB 382 is outstanding
| egislation that he was very surprised and happy to see cone
forth. He said [HB 382] provides a trenendous benefit for
people with children who unknowi ngly rent [these sites].

CO- CHAI R MASEK asked whether the |aw enforcenent officers who

[raid] meth labs are in the [federal Drug Enforcenent Agency
(DEA)] .

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 28- March 1, 2002



VR KORNCHUCK answered that specialized, trained officers
including state troopers, local police officers, and federa
i nvestigators go through one-week training in which they |earn
i ndustri al - hygi ene techni ques, proper use of equipnent, what to
| ook for, and how to be safe. Only those who are certified to
enter clandestine drug l|aboratories are allowed to participate
in the raids and the cleanup process. In addition, a highly
specialized group of individuals in the state get together for
annual certification every year and talk about the new drug
trends.

CO- CHAIR MASEK remarked that Section 2 requires testing of
property before continued use if a law enforcenent officer has
determ ned that the property was an illegal drug manufacturing
or storage site.

Number 1021

JANICE ADAIR, Director, Division of Environnental Heal t h,
Depart nent of Envi ronnment al Conservati on, testified Vi a
tel econference, relating her wunderstanding that there is a
possibility of false positives for |lead and mercury. There are
guidelines for | aboratories to use to recognize that
possibility, she said.

Nunmber 1087
REPRESENTATI VE GUESS of fered Anendnent 1, which read:

Page 4, l'ine 22- 24, fol |l ow ng "Sec. 46. 03. 540.
Decontam nation requirenents. (a) |If"

Delete "testing under AS 46.46.03.520 shows the
presence of a substance that exceeds the limts set by
regul ati ons adopted under AS 46.03.530 and"

Page 4, line 25, follow ng "property,"
Insert "for which a notice has been issued under
AS 46. 03. 500, "

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS explained that if property is found to be
the site of an illegal manufacturing lab, and if the property
owner knows he/she wants to clean up the property, Amendnent 1
would allow the property owner to skip initial testing of the
property, clean up the property in accordance wth the
gui del i nes, and then have the property tested to ensure that the
standards have been net. This would save the owner the expense
of testing the property tw ce.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -29- March 1, 2002



Number 1220

REPRESENTATI VE FATE noved that the comm ttee adopt the foregoing
as Anmendnent 1. There being no objection, Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

Nunmber 1248

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS again addressed the subject of new
substances that mght be used in illegal drug manufacturing.
She offered tw slightly different anendnents [discussed
previously] that would broaden the l|anguage in [AS 46.03.530]
and allow the departnment to [periodically] review information
related to illegal drug manufacturing, identify hazardous
substances used in the mnufacturing, and add [regul ations].
Representative Guess nentioned concern anong |aw enforcenent
officers about limting the nunber of substances included in
this section.

[ There was an at-ease from 3:06 p.m to 3:08 p.m, during which
the two anendnents nentioned by Representative Quess were
wi t hdrawn. ]

CO- CHAIR MASEK explained on the record that she thought the

amendnents were too broad and shouldn't be included. She said
the bill already identifies hazardous chemicals associated with
illegal manufacturing |aboratories. She therefore had asked

that the proposed anendnents be recall ed.
Nunber 1492

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA began di scussi on of conceptual Amendnent
2. Referring to page 3, lines 4-7, she asked what the property
owner's recourse would be when a l|lease is voided because of
illegal drug manufacturing. Representative Kerttula suggested
anendi ng paragraph 1, line 8, to include "or |ease" after
"prom ssory note".

MR. JOHNSON said it would be beneficial because if the renter
has a clandestine |lab, then the | ease [can be voided]; noreover,
it would provide the property owner recourse for the voided
| ease.

Nunmber 1650

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 30- March 1, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked why only the renter would be excl uded
and not the user or | essee.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA pointed out that subsection (b) covers
the transfer and sale. She said including the word "lease"
woul d probably cover |[Representative Geen's concern]. She
indicated the anmendnent should be conceptual so the correct
| anguage can be used to provide protection for the | andl ord.

Nunber 1759

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA noved to adopt the foregoing as
conceptual Anmendnent 2. There being no objection, conceptual
Amendnent 2 was adopt ed.

Number 1772

CO CHAIR MASEK turned attention to the fiscal note for DEC. She
gave a brief synopsis of the fiscal note expenditures. She
i ndi cated operating costs would be $12,000 for FY 2003 and
$2, 000 per year thereafter.

Nunber 1917

REPRESENTATI VE McGUIRE noved to report CSHB 382 [HB 382, as
anended] out of conmmttee with individual recomendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB
382(RES) was nmoved out of the House Resources Standing
Commi ttee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 3:20 p.m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -31- March 1, 2002



